# RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS SKAGIT TRANSIT BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Wednesday March 18, 2020

The Skagit Transit Board of Directors met in regular session via Teleconference in Burlington, WA. Chair Dahlstedt called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. followed by the Roll Call and Introductions.

#### **Members Present:**

Kenneth Dahlstedt, Skagit County Commissioner (Chair) Soren Jensen, Labor Representative (non-voting member)

## **Members Present via Teleconference:**

Laurie Gere, City of Anacortes, Mayor (Vice Chair) Lisa Janicki, Skagit County Commissioner Ron Wesen, Skagit County Commissioner Julia Johnson, City of Sedro Woolley, Mayor Steve Sexton, City of Burlington, Mayor

### **Members Absent:**

Jill Boudreau, City of Mount Vernon, Mayor Mark Hulst, City of Mount Vernon, Councilmember Rick DeGloria, City of Burlington, Councilmember

#### Staff Present

Dale O'Brien, Executive Director Arden Flores, Manager of Finance & Admin Allan Schaner, Maintenance/Facilities Manager Mark Kennedy, Operations Manager Chris Chidley, IT Manager Penny Roodzant, HR Manager Tiffany Guwin, Clerk to the Board

## **Members of Public via Teleconference:**

Joe Kunzler 90X Rider, unnamed Kaite Bunge, SCOG

### **Providing Legal Counsel:**

None

#### I Public Comment:

Mr. Kunzler appreciates greatly the Teleconferencing. He also would like to see Skagit Transit run a ballot measure this fall.

### II Consent / Action Items:

- a) Approval of February Meeting Minutes

Ms. Johnson moved to approve all Consent / Action items. Mr. Wesen seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

#### III Full Discussion/Action Items:

# a) Sole Source Purchase of Delerrok TouchPass Readers for Paratransit Fare Collections

Mr. Chidley read the Action Item as presented in the Agenda Packet. Mr. Sexton commented that with the uncertainty in our economy, he doesn't feel this is a Mission Critical type of purchase, critical to the organization. He would like the Board to look at a 6 month temporary freeze on any purchases that are not critical to our mission. Would you consider this a purchase critical to the mission, or can it wait 6 or 8 months? Mr. Chidley answered that we have plans to start collecting Paratransit (PT) fares in June. It takes to months to receive the readers when the purchase is finalized. At this point, it is up to the Board to decide if they would like to postpone the starting date for collecting the PT fares. If we are not going to start collecting PT fares, this is not a critical purchase. If we need to start collecting PT fares in June, this is a critical purchase. Mr. Sexton clarified that if we don't purchase these readers, we won't have another way to collect the PT fares. Mr. O'Brien confirmed we cannot collect fares without the Dellerok readers. Mr. Wesen asked how much we expected to collect in Paratransit fares. Mr. Obrien stated that we plan to charge \$2 per ride, although it's hard to predict at this time because our PT ridership is down 50%. Mr.

Sexton stated it was originally estimated at about \$64,000 per year. He is in favor of postponing this for 6 months due to the PT ridership being the most vulnerable to this epidemic we are undergoing. Mr. Flores clarified we budgeted \$50,000 if we started collecting fares in June. Obviously at this time, we may not collect that much. Mr. Dahlstedt stated that even if we decided not to collect a fare until a later date, we could still purchase the readers and just not use them until we start collecting a fare. If we wait until we decide to start collecting a fare, we can't do it until we have the readers in place.

Ms. Janicki moved to approve the Sole Source Purchase of Delerrok TouchPass Readers for Paratransit Fare Collections. Mr. Wesen seconded the motion. After a Roll Call Vote, the motion passed with 4 in Favor and 2 Opposed.

# b) COVID-19 Pandemic Leave Authorization

Ms. Roodzant stated that earlier in the week the Agency received a template for what many transit agencies in the area were doing for Pandemic Leave. Because we provide essential Transit service to our community, then we have to ask our employees to stay home if they are not feeling well, or are infected with this virus. We are asking that we be able to provide them with additional leave. We are asking for up to 2 weeks of what we are calling Pandemic Leave to be used if they meet 1 of the 4 following criteria:

- i. An absence resulting from the employee having tested positive for COVID-19, or exhibiting the Common Symptoms of COVID-19;
- ii. An absence resulting from the employee residing with someone who has tested positive for COVID-19 or who exhibits the Common Symptoms;
- iii. When the employee's child's school or place of care has been closed for reasons related to COVID-19, in which case Pandemic Leave may be used until alternate care is established;
- iv. When the employee's workplace has been closed by order of a public official or by Agency management for reasons related to COVID-19.

It would provide up to 2 weeks of leave. For Operators, this would be 2 weeks of their bidded hours. For Extra Board Operators, it would be for up to the 28 hour guarantee per week and for all other employees it would be for up to 40 hours a week based on their regular schedule. We are also asking that the leave be increased at the Executive Director's discretion. Ms. Roodzant went on to say that we've seen 3 or 4 other transit agencies this week accept this particular template; Mason Transit, Link Transit, Valley Transit, and Island Transit. WTA accepted something bigger than this to include 12 weeks of paid leave if the employee themselves was sick.

Mr. Jensen stated that the Local Union is in full support of this and they would hope the Board would consider approving it.

Mr. O'Brien commented that as Mr. Jensen stated, the drivers are in support of this and would appreciate a "safety net" if they do feel ill, and we feel this is the right thing to do for them.

Mr. Sexton asked if they would continue to accrue benefits like sick leave and vacation time during this 2 week period? Mr. O'Brien answered Yes, it would be just as if they were on the payroll. He added that we received information from AWC regarding testing for the virus. They are going to waive the co-pay associated with this test. We are an essential service and we want to do everything we can to make sure our drivers and employees do not get ill.

Ms. Janicki asked if the Agency has done a financial calculation for what the potential financial impact would be assuming a 50% or 100% utilization. Ms. Roodzant replied that she did a calculation based on a week at 100% utilization including taxes, 401a, etc. it would be \$172,000. This is the most conservative figure and the largest it would be. The managers would continue to work and not take advantage of this leave, although they are included in that calculation. But the leave request could be for 2 weeks, so a potential total of \$344,000. Mr. Sexton stated that he is not in favor of the employees accruing other benefits while utilizing this potential benefit that is above and beyond what we should be providing for this type of time off.

Mr. Jensen stated that the drivers are on the front lines of this epidemic with the exposure they face doing their jobs. We certainly want people who feel ill should be able to stay home and not spread the disease. Mr. Sexton stated, respectively that he thinks of the police and fire are the front lines of this dealing with the sick people every day. We need to look down the road and realize that bus service isn't as essential as we think it is. Other areas have shut down bus service to prevent the spread of this illness. He finds it hard to do things for this organization that they (the Board) can't do for their own organization, the front lines, the First Responders.

Mr. Wesen asked for clarification regarding the request that the Executive Director be able to extend the leave beyond 2 weeks. It's already potentially \$345,000 and the ED would be able to extend it more? Mr. O'Brien said that is what the documents says, but we couldn't afford to do it. He went on to say he would not make the decision without the Board's approval.

Mr. Sexton asked if the Agency has considered whether to use this after Sick Leave has been used or not? Ms. Roodzant clarified that the Agency doesn't have sick leave. We have one bank of General Leave that is used for all paid time off. Mr. Sexton then stated that we're going to put employees on 2 weeks of paid Pandemic Leave and let them accrue more General Leave. Mr. O'Brien stated that if their time off is more than 2 weeks, the employee would have to start using their General Leave.

Chairman Dahlstedt asked if the Board would be more comfortable with the policy being that employees get 2 weeks of leave and then if more is needed, the board meets to discuss if more leave should be given? Mr. Wesen said he'd definitely be more comfortable with that because eventually the reserves could be at zero. Ms. Johnson said she'd be more comfortable with that as well, and that it come back before the board before more leave is granted. Ms. Janicki was struggling with this because she may not understand all of the options out there for state leave, but it's difficult for her to approve something like this when she has members of her county workforce at the Health Department, DEM, EMS, all people who are front line, so if she can't approve something like this in the broader context, it's difficult for her to approve it for the Transit Agency. Mayor Gere stated (via chat) that she supports 2 weeks of leave, these are unprecedented times, so we need to act to protect all of the public.

Ms. Gere moved to approve the COVID-19 Pandemic Leave Authorization. Mr. Wesen seconded the motion. After a Roll Call Vote, the motion failed due to a tie, 3 in favor and 3 opposed.

If a situation arises that requires readdressing this Leave Authorization, a special meeting will have to be called. Not all board members are present to potentially break the tie.

Mr. Sexton asked for clarification on the agenda because he noticed the monthly budget report was not on the agenda. Mr. Flores stated it was his misunderstanding due to having a limited agenda this month because of the Teleconference meeting, he did not include the report. There is nothing out of the ordinary in February. Sales Taxes are 2.3% higher than the same month last year, fuels are within budget, and all expenses are normal. There isn't anything different in the month of February. Based on the current economic situation, we won't know what our Sales Tax impact for March will be until May because there is a 2 month lag in receiving Sales Tax revenue for a specific month. The budget report will be emailed after the meeting. Ms. Janicki commented that the Board would appreciate a Contingency Plan on financials assuming Sales Tax revenue takes a hit because of this economic downturn. She would appreciate a report on that at the next month's board meeting. Mr. O'Brien responded that the Managers have been meeting to discuss routes that may have to be reduced due to lack of ridership. He stated that Ms. Janicki's point is well taken, and once the decision is made on route reduction, that will come before the board. Mr. Flores mentioned that at the February board meeting he provided information on a plan to build back up the reserve accounts. Due to this current economic situation, that will be taken into consideration to update the reserve plan.

## c) Approval for Skagit Transit to go Fare Free

Mr. O'Brien apologized that this item wasn't on the agenda, but this topic just came up over the last 72 hours. Whatcom Transportation Authority (WTA) and several other transit agencies in the state have suspended collecting a fare on Fixed Route. The reasons are to increase the social distance between our drivers and our riders, to provide relief to our customers to our riders who have to ride the bus for emergencies, we have 2 employees that have to go out and count our vault, but the building is so small, it

doesn't meet the mandate of 6 feet apart, and we don't have to probe the buses to empty the funds freeing up time for our Servicer employees to spend time deep cleaning the buses. Mr. O'Brien is asking the Board for approval to suspend charging a fare during this emergency time period that could be for two (2) weeks or three (3) weeks, it's uncertain. The biggest concern is if we start losing drivers to this virus, we won't be able to put service on the street. Our Fixed Route ridership is currently down over 30%, WTA Fixed Route ridership is down over 50% and falling, and our ParaTransit ridership is down over 30%. Dovetailing that with the potential route cuts, he's unable to say at this time what our potential revenue loss would be for not charging a fare, but it's minimal compared to what the consequences would be if we didn't suspend fares.

Mr. Wesen asked for clarification that the Agency is about 7% fare recovery? Mr. O'Brien answered that on Local routes, we are about 4%, but on Commuter it is about 7-9% fare recovery. Mr. Dahlstedt asked if it was the Commuter routes that are down, but Mr. O'Brien clarified that those routes are up, but the Local routes are down quite a bit. On some routes that have 2 (two) buses, they would be condensed down to 1 (one) bus. The mid-day Commuter routes could be reduced as well. The target is to get the commuters to the Sounder Train in the morning, and bring them back in the evening. The 80X is shared with WTA, and with the University being closed, we will meet with WTA to determine where that route could be reduced. Amtrak has also suspended their service.

Mr. O'Brien stated he is asking for approval to suspend colleting a fare during this emergency time period, however long that may be. Mr. Wesen said the 4% fare recovery isn't enough to continue collecting a fare. A report on the contingency plan for the agency will be helpful to determine what the impact is of people not riding the buses. Ms. Janicki agrees with suspending the fare collection for the social distancing and handling the money. It is a good public health step.

# Ms. Janicki moved to approve the motion to suspend collecting a fare until further notice. Mr. Wesen seconded the motion.

Mr. Sexton commented that he is opposed to any reduction in revenue collection right now because we are hastening the economic uncertainty that we are facing and he asked if Vanpool is included (it is not). Mr. Kunzler agreed with Mr. Sexton and asked 2 question regarding if we go fare free: #1 – isn't this going to encourage people to ride the bus when they should be self-isolating and #2 – could this mess up collection ParaTransit fare? He's happy to take the answers offline. Mr. Jensen stated that he thinks it would eliminate the contact for drivers, which is very helpful to the drivers. Mr. Dahlstedt commented that the County is doing many things to eliminate people interacting with one another such as working from home or doing things over the phone. That's not something that can be done on Transit. Ms. Gere commented via Chat that these are underrepresented times so we need to act to protect all of the public.

#### A Rollcall vote was taken. The motion passed with 5 in Favor, and 1 Opposed.

#### IV Community Advisory Committee Report – this meeting was cancelled.

# V Executive Directors Report

a) In the February board meeting, there was an Executive Session to discuss the additional 3 acres available on Bay Ridge Drive. No Action was taken at that time. Mr. O'Brien is asking the Board if we can send a Letter of Interest to Jack Wallace (the owner of the property). There is no commitment and no price negotiation, just notifying him of our interest in the property. This way if we decide to go ahead with it, he is aware of our interest.

# Ms. Johnson made a motion to approve sending the Letter of Interest. Ms. Gere seconded the motion.

**A Rollcall vote was taken.** Mr. Sexton abstained from voting due to this item not being on the Agenda prior to the meeting. After much discussion, it was decided that this topic will be tabled.

VI	Information Items:	
	None.	
VII	Unfinished Business:	
	None.	
VIII	New Business:	
Comn	nissioner Dahlstedt adjourned the meet	ing at 1:55 p.m.
	Attest:	Commissioner Ken Dahlstedt, Chair Skagit Transit Board of Directors
	Tiffany Guwin,	

approve it. Ms. Janicki agreed.

Clerk of Skagit Transit Board

Mr. Dahlstedt made the decision to move forward with the Fare Suspension because it is in the middle of a crisis, it is about the health & safety of our drivers and the public and the majority voted to